
Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m., Wednesday, July 31, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 24, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

Guest Presentation: Community Transit Swift Gold Line

COMMUNITY TRANSIT_SWIFT GOLD LINE_PRESENTATION.PDF

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,939,609.15 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024 Through July 19, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 13, 2024 - JUL 19, 2024.PDF

(2) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Payroll Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount 
Of $6,265,757.13 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024.

2024 RESOLUTION FOR PAYROLL PAY PERIOD 15.PDF

(3) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Electronic Claims Against The City Of Everett In The 
Amount Of $8,164,000.29 For The Period Of May 1, 2024 Through June 30, 2024.

EFT COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2024-6.PDF

(4) Authorize A Call For Bids For The 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements Project.

18TH STREET PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Acceptance Of The Assistance To Firefighters Grant For 
The Purchase Of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) At A Cost To The City Of 
$7,161.14.

ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT EMW-2023.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS:

(6) CB 2407-14 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

(7) CB 2407-15 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Interlocal Agreement (ILA) With Snohomish County 
For The US2/I-5 Interchange Justification Planning Study.

WET-SNOHOMISH COUNTY-US 2 AND I5 INTERCHANGE PLANNING STUDY-
ILA.PDF

BRIEFING:

(9) Everett 2044 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update

EVERETT 2044 BRIEFING.PDF
2044 COMP PLAN PRES.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m., Wednesday, July 31, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 24, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

Guest Presentation: Community Transit Swift Gold Line

COMMUNITY TRANSIT_SWIFT GOLD LINE_PRESENTATION.PDF

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,939,609.15 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024 Through July 19, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 13, 2024 - JUL 19, 2024.PDF

(2) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Payroll Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount 
Of $6,265,757.13 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024.

2024 RESOLUTION FOR PAYROLL PAY PERIOD 15.PDF

(3) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Electronic Claims Against The City Of Everett In The 
Amount Of $8,164,000.29 For The Period Of May 1, 2024 Through June 30, 2024.

EFT COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2024-6.PDF

(4) Authorize A Call For Bids For The 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements Project.

18TH STREET PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Acceptance Of The Assistance To Firefighters Grant For 
The Purchase Of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) At A Cost To The City Of 
$7,161.14.

ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT EMW-2023.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS:

(6) CB 2407-14 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

(7) CB 2407-15 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Interlocal Agreement (ILA) With Snohomish County 
For The US2/I-5 Interchange Justification Planning Study.

WET-SNOHOMISH COUNTY-US 2 AND I5 INTERCHANGE PLANNING STUDY-
ILA.PDF

BRIEFING:

(9) Everett 2044 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update

EVERETT 2044 BRIEFING.PDF
2044 COMP PLAN PRES.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:



Everet t  C i ty  Counc i l  Pre l iminary  Agenda

 6:30 p.m., Wednesday, July 31, 2024

City  Counci l  Chambers
Roll Call

Pledge Of Allegiance

Land Acknowledgment

Approval Of Minutes: July 24, 2024

Mayor ’s Comments

Public Comment

Council Comments/Liaison Reports 

Administration Update 

City Attorney 

Guest Presentation: Community Transit Swift Gold Line

COMMUNITY TRANSIT_SWIFT GOLD LINE_PRESENTATION.PDF

CONSENT ITEMS:

(1) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount Of 
$2,939,609.15 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024 Through July 19, 2024.

RES CLAIMS PAYABLE JUL 13, 2024 - JUL 19, 2024.PDF

(2) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Payroll Claims Against The City Of Everett In The Amount 
Of $6,265,757.13 For The Period Ending July 13, 2024.

2024 RESOLUTION FOR PAYROLL PAY PERIOD 15.PDF

(3) Adopt Resolution Authorizing Electronic Claims Against The City Of Everett In The 
Amount Of $8,164,000.29 For The Period Of May 1, 2024 Through June 30, 2024.

EFT COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2024-6.PDF

(4) Authorize A Call For Bids For The 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements Project.

18TH STREET PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS-CALL FOR BIDS.PDF

(5) Authorize The Mayor To Sign Acceptance Of The Assistance To Firefighters Grant For 
The Purchase Of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) At A Cost To The City Of 
$7,161.14.

ASSISTANCE TO FIREFIGHTERS GRANT EMW-2023.PDF

PROPOSED ACTION ITEMS:

(6) CB 2407-14 – 2nd Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. (3rd & 
Final Reading 8/7/24)

CB 2407-14.PDF

(7) CB 2407-15 – 1st Reading - Adopt An Ordinance Creating A Special Improvement 
Project Entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 
(3rd & Final Reading 8/14/24)

CB 2407-15.PDF

ACTION ITEM:

(8) Authorize The Mayor To Sign The Interlocal Agreement (ILA) With Snohomish County 
For The US2/I-5 Interchange Justification Planning Study.

WET-SNOHOMISH COUNTY-US 2 AND I5 INTERCHANGE PLANNING STUDY-
ILA.PDF

BRIEFING:

(9) Everett 2044 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update

EVERETT 2044 BRIEFING.PDF
2044 COMP PLAN PRES.PDF

Executive Session

Adjourn

PARTICIPATION IN REMOTE COUNCIL MEETINGS

¡ Call in to listen to the Council meetings: 425.616.3920, conference ID: 724 887 726# 

¡ Participate remotely via Zoom by registering to speak at everettwa.gov/speakerform. You 

must register no later than 30 minutes prior to the meeting. Or contact Angela Ely at 

425.257.8703 or aely@everettwa.gov and identify the topic you wish to address. 

¡ Provide written public comments by email to Council@everettwa.gov or mail to 2930 

Wetmore Avenue, Suite 9A, Everett, WA 98201. Emailing comments 24 hours prior to the 

meeting will ensure your comment is distributed to councilmembers and appropriate 

staff.  

¡ Persons seeking to comment on non-agenda items may be asked to submit the 

comments in writing if the comment does not address an issue of broad public interest.

AGENDAS, BROADCAST AND RECORDINGS

¡ The Council agendas and meeting recordings can be found, in their entirety, at 

everettwa.gov/citycouncil . 

¡ The Council meetings are broadcast on government-access cable Comcast Channel 21 

and Frontier Channel 29. They are rebroadcast on Monday and Tuesday at noon; 

Thursday at 2 p.m. and 7 p.m.; Friday and Sunday at 7 p.m.; Saturday at 10 a.m.   

¡ Watch live meetings and recordings at YouTube.com/EverettCity.

CONTACT THE COUNCIL

If you do not wish to participate in the meeting, we provide these other methods of contacting your 

elected officials: Email the Council at Council@everettwa.gov.

¡ Call the Council offices at 425.257.8703 

¡ You may call in just to listen to the meeting: 425.616.3920, conference ID 724 887 726#

The City of Everett does not discriminate on the basis of disability in the admission or access to, or 

treatment in, its programs or activities. Requests for assistance or accommodations can be arranged 

by contacting the Everett City Council Office at 425.257.8703. For additional information, please visit 

our website at https://www.everettwa.gov/3129/American-Disabilities-Act-ADA-and-Title-.

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

Documents:

http://everettwa.gov/speakerform
mailto:aely@everettwa.gov
http://everettwa.gov/citycouncil
http://youtube.com/everettcity
mailto:Council@everettwa.gov
https://www.everettwa.gov/d11b01ab-7cb9-438d-9d5d-32af549c2272


City of Everett 
Swift Gold Line

July 31, 2024



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
Swift Network

Current Swift service 

• Swift Blue Line

• Swift Green Line

• Swift Orange Line



What is Swift Bus Rapid 
Transit (BRT)?



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Pay before you board at stations
 All-door boarding



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent  All-day service

 Every 10 minutes on weekdays
 Every 20 minutes on weekends



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Lane priority
 Signal priority



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable

Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Real-time information
 Accessible for all passengers
 On-board bike racks



BRT Examples around Washington

Swift, the first BRT in WA, opened in 2009
 RapidRide, King County Metro 2010
 The Vine, C-TRAN (Vancouver) 2017
 City Line, Spokane 2023
 Stride, Sound Transit 2027



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
Ridership Trends

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Average Annual Boardings – Swift BRT vs Other Services 

COVID-19 
Pandemic



Swift Gold Line 



Swift Gold Line
Project Goals & Benefits

Provide frequent service 
between Everett, 
Marysville & Arlington

Improve connections 
between local and 
regional services, 
including Light Rail 

Improve transit 
capacity, speed, 
convenience, and 
reliability

Support sustainable 
planned regional 
growth



2024-2025
Scoping Study 

2025-2027
Environmental 

& Design

2027-2029
Construction

2029
Launch!

Swift Gold Line
Project Schedule

Currently in 



Swift Gold Line 
Route



Swift Gold Line
Route



Swift Gold Line

Three Route Options

A: State Ave > 136th > 51st 
B: State Ave > Shoultes > 51st 
C: State Ave > 72nd/Grove > 51st 

Route



Corridor Vision and 
New Bus Travel Lane 

Concepts



Lane Configuration

Current Swift Configuration – Curbside Lane



Lane Configuration

Current Swift Configuration – Curbside
Business Access & Transit Lane (BAT) & Transit Signal Priority (TSP) 

• BAT lanes require all 
vehicles to turn right, 
except buses

• Signal priority technology 
keeps buses moving 
through intersections 



Lane Configuration

Center-Running – 2 Lanes Concept



Lane Configuration

Center-Running – 1 Lane Concept



Lane Configuration

Center-running concepts include
• Safe crossings connecting 

station platforms
• Platforms integrated with 

pedestrian refuge islands

Example from Spokane’s City Line



Swift Gold Line 
Community Engagement



Community Engagement 
Approach and Timeline

Phase 1: Consult 
Jul 11 - Aug 7, 2024

• Project overview, need, 
benefits, and introduce bus 
lane options

• Seek Community feedback on 
route options 

Phase 2: Involve
December 2024

• Share refined route option 

• Seek community feedback on 
bus travel lane options and 
potential station locations



Community Engagement 
Approach and Timeline

Phase 3: Consult 
February 2025

• Seek Community 
feedback on draft locally 
preferred alternative 

• Details for proposed 
station locations and 
route

Phase 4: Inform
May 2025

• Share Board-approved 
locally preferred 
alternative 

• Details for proposed 
station locations and 
route to move into 
environmental review 
and design



Swift Gold Line 
Outreach Schedule

Q3 2024

Phase 1 
Engagement

Council 
Updates

Q4 2024

Phase 2 
Engagement

Q1 2025

Phase 3 
Engagement

Q2 2025

Locally 
Preferred Alt 

Approval

Phase 4 
Engagement



Thank You!



Be it Resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

Fund Department Amount Fund Department  Amount 

001 City Council 1,920.00 101 Parks & Recreation 8,424.35
002 General Government (5,361.55) 110 Library 18,322.74
003 Legal 35,222.55 112 Community Theater 12,959.25
005 Municipal Court 19.40 114 Conference Center 1,200.00
007 Human Resources 54.77 120 Public Works-Streets 1,819.78
009 Misc Financial Funds 607,101.14 126 MV-Equipment Replacement Reserve417,381.92
010 Finance 106.69 130 Develop & Const Permit Fees 966.67
015 Information Technology 4.20 146 Property Management 14,689.66
021 Planning & Community Development 671.35 152 Cum Reserve-Library 5,420.33
024 Public Works-Engineering 15,544.25 153 Emergency Medical Services 21,335.48
026 Animal Shelter 149.50 155 Capital Reserve Fund 347,499.64
031 Police 28,039.94 156 Criminal Justice 889.17
032 Fire 15,561.63 162 Capital Projects Reserve 14,686.74
038 Facilities/Maintenance 178.52 197 CHIP Loan Program 19,139.75

198 Community Dev Block Grant 3,352.63
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 699,212.39$      303 PW Improvement Projects 6,187.77

336 Water & Sewer Sys Improv Project 4,491.75
342 City Facilities Contruction 25,418.75
401 Public Works-Utilities 326,503.44
402 Solid Waste Utility 1,673.90
425 Public Works-Transit 598,043.74
440 Golf 110,974.73
501 MVD-Transportation Services 134,652.48
503 Self-Insurance 13,216.91
508 Health Benefits 33,893.82
637 Police Pension 452.70
638 Fire Pension 4,856.48
661 Claims 64,307.76
665 Other Special Agency Funds 27,634.42

TOTAL CLAIMS 2,939,609.15$     

Councilperson introducing Resolution

Passed and approved this ________day of ________________  , 2024

Council President

Whereas the claims payable by check against the City of Everett for the period Jul 13, 2024 through Jul 19, 2024, 

having been audited and approved by the proper officers, have been paid and the disbursements made by the same, 

against the proper funds in payment thereof, as follows:

RESOLUTION NO. __________



 Category 2: Sensitive information#

                                   R E S O L U T I O N   N O.  ________________

Be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

That the payroll of the employees of the City of Everett as of July 13, and checks issued 

July 19, 2024, having been audited, be and the same is hereby approved and the proper officers

are hereby authorized and directed to charge checks on the Payroll Fund in payment thereof:

       Gross Employer

Fund      Department         Payroll Contributions

001 Legislative 12,844.49 6,871.45

003 Legal 96,295.57 27,549.28

004 Administration 52,795.55 11,617.69

005 Municipal Court 68,991.11 24,036.01

007 Personnel 60,455.59 18,183.29

010 Finance 115,214.52 33,031.03

015 Information Technology 112,014.50 35,819.40

018 Communications and Marketing 23,861.05 6,859.44

021 Planning & Community Dev 123,626.14 36,402.17

024 Public Works 231,231.59 73,915.85

026 Animal Shelter 61,227.54 23,689.82

030 Emergency Management 10,764.80 3,453.96

031 Police 1,287,676.78 311,012.00

032 Fire 1,217,783.87 214,203.69

038 Facilities/Maintenance 111,329.02 41,166.53

101 Parks & Recreation 181,544.26 61,694.44

110 Library 129,041.15 41,504.85

112 Community Theatre 8,654.24 2,080.47

120 Street 78,678.81 27,912.81

153 Emergency Medical Services 696,194.54 113,164.35

197 CHIP 11,771.45 3,418.77

198 Community Dev Block 3,839.53 1,253.29

401 Utilities 909,591.73 333,176.46

425 Transit 528,915.95 188,262.83

440 Golf 49,693.07 14,758.73

501 Equip Rental 81,720.28 30,395.55

$6,265,757.13 $1,685,434.16

__________________________________________

Councilperson Introducing Resolution

                                 Passed and approved this _______ day of ______________ , 2024.

 __________________________________________

Council President
# Category 2: For official use only / disclosure permissible by law.

https://www.everettconnect.org/DocumentCenter/View/19667/Everett-WA-navy-JPG


RESOLUTION NO. ________________

Fund Department Amount

002 General Fund 239,169.71        

101 Park 41,563.58           

110 Library 9,095.78              

112 Community Theater 2,833.43              

119 Public Works ‐ Street Imp 400.24                 

120 Streets 7,600.31              

126 Moter Vehicle/Equip Repl 460.28                 

145 ESCROQ 415.00                 

146 Parking Lot Reserve 670.98                 

148 Municipal Art Fund 324.14                 

151 Animal Reserve 12,846.97           

152 Library Reserve 764.47                 

153 EMS 32,687.25           

155 Gen Gov Spec Proj 2,955.35              

156 Criminal Justice 21,397.30           

162 Capital Rreserve 12,118.26           

197 CHIP 82.48                   

198 CDBG 1,806.35              

354 Parks Capital Construction 1,155.70              

401 Utilities 400,791.88        

402 Solid Waste Utility 1,076.15              

425 Transit 38,458.05           

430 Everpark Garage 3,632.23              

440 Golf 229,756.19        

501 Transportation Services 131,789.45        

503 Self‐Insurance Fund 385,105.39        

505 Computer Reserve Fund 5,975.91              

507 Telecom 23,556.81           

508 Health Benefits Reserve 2,071,763.76     

637 Police Pension 100,509.85        

638 Fire Pension 83,619.42           

661 Payroll Withholding 4,298,806.06     

670 Custodial Funds 811.56                 

TOTAL CLAIMS

  BY ELECTRONIC TRANSFER 8,164,000.29     

Councilmember Introducing Resolution

Passed and approved this _____ day of ____________, 2024

Council President

approved, and the proper officers are hereby authorized and directed to charge claims

made by electronic transfer against the proper funds in payment thereof, as follows:

Be it Resolved by the City Council of the City of Everett:

That the claims made by electronic transfer against the City of Everett for the month  

May 1 through June 30 2024, having been audited, be and the same are hereby



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Project title:  Authorize a Call for bids for 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements. 

Council Bill #  
 

Consideration: Call for bids 

Project: 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements 

Partner/Supplier: NA 

                    Location: 18th Street between Maple and Jason Park 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3739- 20, approved on 3/18/2020 

Fund: Fund 303 – Public Works Improvement Projects 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
Proposed action 
Consent                    07/31/24 
Action        
Ordinance   
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Vicinity Map 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8809 
 

Email: 
thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The current programmed available funding, as established by City Ordinance No. 3739-
20, for this project is $1,190,000. 

  
 

Project summary statement:  

The plans and specifications are complete, and the 18th Street Pedestrian Improvement 
Project is ready to be advertised for construction bids. 
 
This project will complete a pedestrian link from west of Walnut to Jackson Park. 

The project includes the construction of new sidewalk and associated appurtenances 
along 18th Street between Maple Street and Jackson Park which will include curb ramps, 
storm drainage pipes and inlets, modular block wall retaining walls, fence, and 
landscaping restoration, and performing all other work as required by the contract.   

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize a call for bids for the 18th Street Pedestrian Improvements project. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/10552?fileID=66238


                                                                                                                                                                                

 

 



Date:  7/16/2024 Working Days 43

95%

ITEM # ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY UNIT PRICE TOTAL AMOUNT

1 Mobilization LS 1 $40,000.00 $40,000.00

2 ADA Features Surveying LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

3 SPCC Plan LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

4 Erosion Control and Water Pollution Prevention LS 1 $750.00 $750.00

5 Street Cleaning HR 43 $200.00 $8,600.00

6 Inlet Protection EA 7 $90.00 $630.00

7 High Visibility Silt Fence LF 125 $25.00 $3,125.00

8 Project Temporary Traffic Contol LS 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

9 Traffic Control Supervisor LS 1 $3,200.00 $3,200.00

10 Flaggers (Min. Bid $75/Hr.) HR 688 $75.00 $51,600.00

11 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

12 Sawcut LF 652 $6.00 $3,912.00

13 Removal of Structures and Obstructions LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

14 Roadway Excavation Incl. Haul CY 427 $50.00 $21,350.00

15 Structure Excavation Class B Incl. Haul CY 220 $30.00 $6,600.00

16 Gravel Backfill for Foundation Class B CY 40 $86.00 $3,440.00

17 Controlled Density Fill CY 20 $350.00 $7,000.00

18 Crushed Surfacing Base Course TON 60 $80.00 $4,800.00

19 HMA Cl. 1/2" PG 64-22 Pavement Patch TON 17 $300.00 $5,100.00

20

High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Storm Sewer Pipe, 6-

In. Diam. LF 40 $90.00 $3,600.00

21

High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Storm Sewer Pipe, 12-

In. Diam. LF 32 $108.00 $3,456.00

22 Connection to Existing Drainage Structure EA 2 $1,500.00 $3,000.00

23 Catch Basin, Type 1L with Gas Trap EA 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

24 Catch Basin, Type 1L EA 2 $4,300.00 $8,600.00

25 Topsoil Type B SY 170 $25.00 $4,250.00

26 Bark or Wood Chip Mulch SY 100 $15.00 $1,500.00

27 Sod Installation SY 126 $40.00 $5,040.00

28

Plant Selection Thuja Occidentalis 'Smaragd' Emerald 

Green Arborvitae, 8'-9' Height EA 15 $450.00 $6,750.00

29 Cement Conc. Traffic Curb and Gutter, Type A-1 LF 465 $100.00 $46,500.00

30 Cement Conc. Curb Type E-3 LF 25 $95.00 $2,375.00

31 Cement Conc. Pedestrian Curb LF 45 $90.00 $4,050.00

32 Extruded Asphalt Wedge Curb LF 41 $50.00 $2,050.00

33 Cement Concrete Driveway Type 1 SY 54 $110.00 $5,940.00

34 Chain Link Fence Type ____ LF 105 $60.00 $6,300.00

35 End, Gate, Corner,and Pull Post for Chain Link Fence EA 12 $50.00 $600.00

36 Cement Conc. Sidewalk SY 210 $95.00 $19,950.00

37 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type B Perpendicular EA 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00

38 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type C Parallel EA 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

39 Cement Concrete Curb Ramp Type D Parallel EA 1.5 $3,000.00 $4,500.00

40 Permanent Signing LS 1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00

41 Cement Concrete Modular Block Unit Retaining Wall SF 640 $72.00 $46,080.00

42 Private Improvement Restoration FA 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00

Subtotal: $392,348.00

CE (18%) $70,622.64

Grand Total: $462,970.64

For:  Dan Enrico

ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE

100pct DESIGN - ENGINEER ESTIMATE
18th Street Pedestrian Improvements
W.O. # 3741

Prepared By:  Gina Loring

Page 1 WO3741 Engr Est 100.xls



 

                                                                                                                                                                                

  

  

    

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: Assistance to Firefighters Grant for the purchase of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 

Council Bill # interoffice use  
 

Project: Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) 

Partner/Supplier: Department of Homeland Security 

                    Location: N/A 

Preceding action:  N/A 

Fund: 032 Fire 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing 
Proposed action 
Consent  07/31/24 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes      X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Award Letter 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Fire, Legal, Purchasing 
 

Contact person: 
Dave DeMarco 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8101 
 

Email: 
DDeMarco@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
The city has been awarded an Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) for $71,611.36 in federal 
funding and the city will contribute 10% or $7,161.14 for a total of $78,772.50 to be used for the 
purchase of personal protective equipment for our firefighters. 

 

Project summary statement: 

This award will allow equipping all firefighters with wildland firefighting apparel: one wildland 
shirt, and one wildland pant for each member, individually fit. 

We traditionally carry generic sizes of wildland apparel on our apparatus for shared use in the 
event of a brush/wildland fire. However, there are often members who do not fit the available 
sizes. 

As our climate has continued to change, the annual pace of brush and wildfires in Everett and 
Snohomish County has increased significantly, and we expect this trend to continue. Providing 
our firefighters with appropriate PPE sized to fit them increases firefighter safety via reduced 
reliance on structural firefighting ensembles, which are much heavier and much less 
maneuverable than wildland PPE. 

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Authorize the Mayor to sign acceptance of the Assistance to Firefighters Grant for the purchase 
of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) at a cost to the city of $7,161.14. 

 

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 















































                                                                                                                                                                                
 

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

Council Bill #  
CB 2407-14 

Consideration: Plans & Systems Ordinance 

Project: Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2 

Partner/Supplier:  

                    Location: I-5 bridge from East Grand Avenue to 4th Street SE 

Preceding action:  None 

Fund: 336 - Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
1st Reading            07/24/24 
Proposed Action  07/31/24 
Consent 
Action                    08/07/24 
Ordinance              X 
Public hearing 
 Yes  X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Ordinance 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Souheil Nasr 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-7210 
 

Email: 
snasr@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
   RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The funding source for this project will be Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for design and construction is $2,333,000. 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

This project is for Phase 2 of the Water Main Replacement “Y” project. The project will 
install a new water main to replace an existing water main suspended from I-5 bridge 
that has a high consequence of failure, and recently prone to breaks. The upgrading of 
the water main will ensure reliability of water service for existing customers and future 
development, and that adequate fire flow, per the 2020 Comprehensive Water Plan, is 
provided. The project is scheduled for design in late 2024 and construction in 2025-
2026.  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042. 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE creating a special improvement project entitled “Water Main Replacement “Y” – 
Phase 2” Fund 336, Program 042, to accumulate all costs for the improvement. 
 
WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City of Everett is committed to a planned water main infrastructure replacement program. 
 

B. The City of Everett has identified the need and obtained funds to construct certain improvements 
to aging water mains. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 
 
Section 1. A special improvement project is hereby established as Fund 336, Program 042, entitled 
“Water Main Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” to accumulate all costs for the improvement. Authorization is 
hereby given to accumulate costs and distribute payments for the improvement project. 
 
Section 2. Authorization is hereby granted for the “Public Works Director” or “City Engineer” under 
the direction of the Mayor, to assume full and complete responsibility for conducting all tasks and doing 
all things to accomplish the actions authorized in this ordinance. 

 
Section 3. The sum of $2,333,000 is hereby appropriated to Fund 336, Program 042, “Water Main 
Replacement “Y” – Phase 2” as follows: 
 
 A. Estimated Project Costs                       $2,333,000 
 
 B. Source of Funds 
      Fund 401 – Water/Sewer Utility Fund                 $ 2,333,000 
      Total Funds                    $ 2,333,000 
  
 
Section 4. The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary 
corrections to this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 
references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 
 
Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 



ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 2 
 

phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it 
would have passed all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as 
may be declared invalid. 

Section 6.  The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other 
matter currently pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which 
may be in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety 
and welfare of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular 
class or group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
Ordinance.  It is the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance 
is intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing 
contained in this Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability 
on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any 
action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by 
its officers, employees or agents. 
 
 
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Ordinance creating a special improvement project entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building 
Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034, and repealing Ordinance No. 3915-22 

Council Bill #  
CB 2407-15 

Consideration: Plans & Systems Ordinance 

Project: WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement 

Partner/Supplier: TBD 

                    Location: Water Filter Plant 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3915-22, approved 12/14/22 

Fund: 336 – Water & Sewer System Improvements Fund 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

1st Reading              07/31/24 
Proposed action    08/07/24 
Consent 
3rd Reading             08/14/24            
Ordinance              X 
Public hearing 
 Yes  X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Ordinance 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
425-257-8809 
 

Email: 
Thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

 

Fiscal summary statement:  

The funding source for this project will be Fund 401 Water and Sewer Utility Fund. The 
programmed available funding for the project is $1,350,000. 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

This project includes the demolition and replacement of an existing 250 square-foot 
building located on the south end of the filter building. A new structure will be 
constructed adjacent to the existing building, which will house two air scour blowers and 
associated electrical and control components.  

The air scour blower system agitates water filtration media during the filter backwash 
process and is a critical component of the filtration system. 

  

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Adopt an Ordinance creating a Special Improvement Project entitled “WFP Air Scour 
Blower Building Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034. 

 

https://www.everettwa.gov/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Item/14854?fileID=84628


 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO.   ________ 
 
An ORDINANCE creating a special improvement project entitled “WFP Air Scour Blower Building 

Replacement” Fund 336, Program 034, to accumulate all costs for the improvement and repealing 

Ordinance No. 3915-22. 

 

WHEREAS,  
 

A. The City of Everett is committed to a planned water system infrastructure maintenance 
improvement and replacement program. 

 
B. The City of Everett has identified the need and obtained funds to design and construct certain 

structural improvements to the Water Filter Plant. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF EVERETT DOES ORDAIN: 

 

Section 1.  A special improvement project is hereby established as Fund 336, Program 034, entitled 

“WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement” to accumulate all costs for the improvement. Ordinance 

No. 3915-22 is hereby repealed. Authorization is hereby given to accumulate costs and distribute 

payments for the improvement project. 

 

Section 2.  Authorization is hereby granted for the “Public Works Director” or “City Engineer” under the 

direction of the Mayor, to assume full and complete responsibility for conducting all tasks and doing all 

things to accomplish the actions authorized in this ordinance. 

 

Section 3.  The sum of $1,350,000 is hereby appropriated to Fund 336, Program 034, “WFP Air Scour 

Blower Building Replacement” as follows: 

 

 A. Estimated Project Costs         $ 1,350,000 

 

 B. Source of Funds 

      Fund 401 – Water/Sewer Utility Fund         $ 1,350,000 

  

 

Section 4.  The City Clerk and the codifiers of this Ordinance are authorized to make necessary 

corrections to this Ordinance including, but not limited to, the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, 

references, ordinance numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any internal references. 



 

ORDINANCE  Page 2 of 2 
 

 

Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or 
phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it 
would have passed all portions of this ordinance independent of the elimination of any such portion as 
may be declared invalid. 

Section 6.  The enactment of this Ordinance shall not affect any case, proceeding, appeal or other 
matter currently pending in any court or in any way modify any right or liability, civil or criminal, which 
may be in existence on the effective date of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 7.  It is expressly the purpose of this Ordinance to provide for and promote the health, safety 
and welfare of the general public and not to create or otherwise establish or designate any particular 
class or group of persons who will or should be especially protected or benefited by the terms of this 
Ordinance.  It is the specific intent of this Ordinance that no provision or any term used in this Ordinance 
is intended to impose any duty whatsoever upon the City or any of its officers or employees.  Nothing 
contained in this Ordinance is intended nor shall be construed to create or form the basis of any liability 
on the part of the City, or its officers, employees, or agents, for any injury or damage resulting from any 
action or inaction on the part of the City related in any manner to the enforcement of this Ordinance by 
its officers, employees, or agents. 
 
 
 
            
            
      
Cassie Franklin, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marista Jorve, City Clerk 
 
PASSED:      

VALID:       

PUBLISHED:      

EFFECTIVE DATE:     

 



                                                                                                                                                                                

   City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title:  An Interlocal Agreement with Snohomish County for the US2/I-5 Interchange Justification 
Planning Study. 

Council Bill #  
 

Consideration: Interlocal Agreement with Snohomish County 

Project: I-5 & US-2 Interchange Justification Report (IJR) Planning Study 

Partner/Supplier: Snohomish County 

                    Location: Interstate 5 at US-2 

Preceding action:  Ordinance No. 3763-20, approved 6/24/2020 

Fund: Fund 303 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing    
Proposed action 
Consent 
Action                       07/31/24 
Ordinance     
Public hearing 
 Yes     X No  
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
 Yes  X No 

 

Attachments: 
Proposed Agreement (2) 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Public Works, Admin 
 

Contact person: 
Tom Hood 
 

Phone number: 
(425) 257-8809 
 

Email: 
thood@everettwa.gov 
 

Initialed by: 
RLS 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  

The budget for this planning study is $2,315,000. A Federal Surface Transportation 
Program (STP) grant will provide $2,000,000, Snohomish County has partnered with the 
City and will provide $150,000 and the balance of the matching funds in the amount of 
$165,000 will come from Fund 119 – Street Improvements. 

 

 

 
Project summary statement:  

The I-5 & US 2 Interchange Justification Report (IJR) Planning Study will produce an 
interchange justification report (IJR) that will provide a set of design recommendations 
for improving conditions at the interchange of I-5, US-2, Hewitt Avenue and other 
streets along the easterly limits of the City of Everett. The grant funds, in conjunction 
with local matching funds, support operational planning and pre-design work. The IJR 
could be integrated with the finalization of environmental planning efforts that recently 
received initial funding from the Washington State Legislature. Integrating the 
operational planning with the environmental planning would streamline the remaining 
schedule towards design and future construction of a new westbound US 2 Trestle. 

 

 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 

Authorize the Mayor to sign the Interlocal Agreement (ILA) with Snohomish County for 
the US2/I-5 Interchange Justification Planning Study. 

 





















 

                                                                                                                                                                                

  

  

    

 

 
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Project title: Everett 2044 Comprehensive Plan Periodic Update 

Council Bill #   
 

Project: Everett 2044 Comprehensive Plan/Development Regulations Periodic 
Update 

Partner/Supplier: NA 

                    Location: Citywide 

Preceding action:  June 12 Built Environment Committee Briefing 

Fund: NA 

Agenda dates requested:  
 

Briefing                    07/31/24 
Proposed action 
Consent 
Action 
Ordinance 
Public hearing 
 Yes      X No 
 

Budget amendment: 
 Yes  X No 

 

PowerPoint presentation: 
X Yes   No 

 

Attachments: 
 
 

Department(s) involved: 
Planning 
 

Contact person: 
Yorik Stevens-Wajda 
 

Phone number: 
425257-87-25 
 

Email: 
ystevens@everettwa.gov 

Initialed by: 
YSW 
Department head  
 
Administration 
 
Council President  

Fiscal summary statement:  
None 

Project summary statement: 

Staff will update the council on the Everett 2044 comprehensive plan and development 
regulation periodic update. See everettwa.gov/2044 for more information. 

Recommendation (exact action requested of Council): 
Briefing only at this time, anticipated action on the Comprehensive Plan in early 2025. 

 

City Council Agenda Item Cover Sheet 

mailto:ystevens@everettwa.gov


Everett 2044 
Periodic Update

July 31, 2024



Periodic Update Status



Periodic Update Status - Three Primary Tracks

➢ Land use and zoning maps

➢ Goals, policies, actions (plan document)

➢ Middle housing regulations



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Review of alternatives ongoing

• Environmental Impact Statement later this year

• Staff working on centers concept



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Looking at Alt 3 (Dispersed) 
as starting point for 
preferred alternative



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Looking at Alt 3 (Dispersed)
as starting point, then:
• Use higher heights from Alt 2 in Metro Core

• Consider higher heights from Alt 2 in centers

• Add Reservoir #5 to Mid-Rise (water utility 
request)

• Add N side Glenwood to Kenwood Dr to 
Low-Rise (staff request)

• Remove Valley View from middle housing 
(staff request)



Goals, Policies, Actions, Plan Document



The end toward which effort is directed.

Desired outcomes / intended achievements

A definite course or method of action selected from 
among alternatives and in light of given conditions to 
guide and determine present and future decisions.

A high-level overall plan embracing the general goals 
and acceptable procedures especially of a 
governmental body.

Guidance for actions / framework for future decision 
making / authorization for implementing regulations

The accomplishment of a thing usually over a period 
of time, in stages, or with the possibility of repetition.

Clear and discrete city work program items
Definitions from Merriam-Webster

Policy

Goal

Action



Elements (Planning Commission Meetings)

Climate Change & 
Resiliency (June-July)

Housing (July-Aug)

Urban Form (Aug)

Design & Development (Aug-
Sept)

Economic Development (Sept)

Marine Port (Sept)

Transportation (Oct)

Healthy Community (Oct)

Parks, Recreation, Open Space (Oct)

Public Facilities & Services (Nov)

Engagement, Administration & 
Implementation (Nov)

Bringing it all together (Dec-Jan)



Climate Change & Resiliency Element

Key Inputs
• State Law and Agency Rules (see Dept. of Commerce)
• Regional policies (VISION 2050 and Countywide Planning Policies)
• City of Everett Climate Action Plan (2020)
• Everett Hazard Mitigation Plan (2024)
• Mayoral directive 2023-04

Drafts available
• Goal alignment sheet
• Goals, policies, actions

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/climate-change-2/
https://www.psrc.org/planning-2050/vision-2050
https://snohomishcountywa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/91986/Council-Adopted-CPPs_Clean_Version_updated-Grw-Targts_02282022
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/23797/Everett-Climate-Action-Plan-January-2020
https://www.everettwa.gov/3099/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan
https://www.everettwa.gov/2992/Climate-Action-and-Sustainability
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/38540/2024-06-18-Planning-Commission-Memo-Climate-Change-and-Resiliency-Element
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/38933


PROPOSED CLIMATE CHANGE & RESILIENCY GOALS

Goal CC-1: Everett community greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions decrease 50% from 
2014 to 2030 and 80% from 2014 to 2050.

Goal CC-2: Municipal greenhouse gas emissions decrease 50% from 2014 to 2030 
and to net zero by 2050.

Goal CC-3: Increase renewable energy production and use.

Goal CC-4: Everett is prepared for and resilient to impacts, hazards and 
emergencies related to climate change.

Goal CC-5: Actions taken to reduce greenhouse gas emissions produce co-benefits 
including improved local air quality, fewer traffic collisions, and 
overburdened communities benefit most.



Housing Element

Key Inputs
• State Law and Agency Rules (see Dept. of Commerce)
• Regional policies (VISION 2050 and Countywide Planning Policies)
• Puget Sound Reginal Council Regional Housing Strategy
• Snohomish County HART Report and Action Plan
• Everett Rethink Housing Action Plan
• Mayoral Directive 2023-03: Housing choices for all

Drafts available
• Goal alignment sheet
• Goals, policies, actions

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/planning-for-housing/updating-gma-housing-elements/
https://www.psrc.org/planning-2050/vision-2050
https://snohomishcountywa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/91986/Council-Adopted-CPPs_Clean_Version_updated-Grw-Targts_02282022
https://www.psrc.org/our-work/regional-housing-strategy
https://www.snohomishcountywa.gov/5560/Report
https://www.everettwa.gov/1395/2035-Comprehensive-Plan
https://www.everettwa.gov/1789/Mayoral-Directives


PROPOSED HOUSING ELEMENT GOALS

Goal HO-1: Encourage development of 38,558 diverse housing units to meet the 
needs of Everett’s growing community while ensuring the city's housing 
stock remains in excellent condition, with most existing homes 
preserved and well-maintained over the next 20 years.

Goal HO-2: Housing is available to rent at prices affordable to the economic 
segments of Everett's population, including 2,900 emergency shelter 
beds, 3,700 permanent supportive housing apartments, and 19,700 
housing units affordable to very low-income households.

Goal HO-3: Ensure equitable access to opportunity and housing choice throughout 
the city’s neighborhoods so that all residents may choose their 
neighborhood.



Rolling Reviews

EVERETTWA.GOV/2044

https://www.everettwa.gov/2812/Everett-2044


Middle Housing

Policy Framework

Regulatory Topics
Future Land Use Designation & 
Zones
Maximum Building Height
Maximum Lot Coverage
Open Space
Setbacks
Parking
Streetscapes and frontage types
Objective design standards

Overarching Considerations
Infrastructure and public services
Affordability
Racially disparate impacts and 
displacement
Historic resources
Critical areas and stormwater

May 21 and June 4 Planning Commission Workshops



Next Steps

• Planning Commission continued work

• Seeking input on element rolling reviews

• City Council briefings

• Boards and commissions

• Outreach push in fall-winter



EVERETTWA.GOV/2044

https://www.everettwa.gov/2812/Everett-2044


From: Andrea Tucker
To: Dustin Gray; Angela Ely
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Everett Mall -REVIII24-007, REVIII24-008, REVI24-069 & REVI24-070
Date: Monday, July 29, 2024 10:45:59 AM

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello, I would like to show support for the modifications and variations for the recreational
project at the Everett Mall.  I believe the increased signage is an important factor for the
success of a business. I can cite many examples of people not finding businesses in Everett
due to poor signage.  Everett Mall Way is vast and confusing for people who are unfamiliar
with the territory, combined with short dark days and poor street markings, obvious signage
could potentially aleve frustration, decrease fender benders and road rage incidents as people
search for the location. 
This type of recreational complex is a great benefit to the mall area and will attract people near
and far.  It will energize the current businesses and potentially attract new ones.  It's time to do
something out of the ordinary. 
Good luck with this project to the developers and the City of Everett.

Andrea Tucker
3330 Wetmore Ave
Everett

Andrea Tucker, Real Estate Broker
Custom Home and Office Staging
John L. Scott Everett
10820 Evergreen Way
Everett, WA  98204
425-870-6699

mailto:everettareahomes@gmail.com
mailto:DGray@everettwa.gov
mailto:AEly@everettwa.gov


City of Everett 
Swift Gold Line

July 31, 2024



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
Swift Network

Current Swift service 

• Swift Blue Line

• Swift Green Line

• Swift Orange Line



What is Swift Bus Rapid 
Transit (BRT)?



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Pay before you board at stations
 All-door boarding



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent  All-day service

 Every 10 minutes on weekdays
 Every 20 minutes on weekends



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable
Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Lane priority
 Signal priority



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)

Reliable

Easy

What is Swift?

Fast
Frequent

 Real-time information
 Accessible for all passengers
 On-board bike racks



BRT Examples around Washington

Swift, the first BRT in WA, opened in 2009
 RapidRide, King County Metro 2010
 The Vine, C-TRAN (Vancouver) 2017
 City Line, Spokane 2023
 Stride, Sound Transit 2027



Swift Bus Rapid Transit (BRT)
Ridership Trends

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

 8,000,000

 9,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Average Annual Boardings – Swift BRT vs Other Services 

COVID-19 
Pandemic



Swift Gold Line 



Swift Gold Line
Project Goals & Benefits

Provide frequent service 
between Everett, 
Marysville & Arlington

Improve connections 
between local and 
regional services, 
including Light Rail 

Improve transit 
capacity, speed, 
convenience, and 
reliability

Support sustainable 
planned regional 
growth



2024-2025
Scoping Study 

2025-2027
Environmental 

& Design

2027-2029
Construction

2029
Launch!

Swift Gold Line
Project Schedule

Currently in 



Swift Gold Line 
Route



Swift Gold Line
Route



Swift Gold Line

Three Route Options

A: State Ave > 136th > 51st 
B: State Ave > Shoultes > 51st 
C: State Ave > 72nd/Grove > 51st 

Route



Corridor Vision and 
New Bus Travel Lane 

Concepts



Lane Configuration

Current Swift Configuration – Curbside Lane



Lane Configuration

Current Swift Configuration – Curbside
Business Access & Transit Lane (BAT) & Transit Signal Priority (TSP) 

• BAT lanes require all 
vehicles to turn right, 
except buses

• Signal priority technology 
keeps buses moving 
through intersections 



Lane Configuration

Center-Running – 2 Lanes Concept



Lane Configuration

Center-Running – 1 Lane Concept



Lane Configuration

Center-running concepts include
• Safe crossings connecting 

station platforms
• Platforms integrated with 

pedestrian refuge islands

Example from Spokane’s City Line



Swift Gold Line 
Community Engagement



Community Engagement 
Approach and Timeline

Phase 1: Consult 
Jul 11 - Aug 7, 2024

• Project overview, need, 
benefits, and introduce bus 
lane options

• Seek Community feedback on 
route options 

Phase 2: Involve
December 2024

• Share refined route option 

• Seek community feedback on 
bus travel lane options and 
potential station locations



Community Engagement 
Approach and Timeline

Phase 3: Consult 
February 2025

• Seek Community 
feedback on draft locally 
preferred alternative 

• Details for proposed 
station locations and 
route

Phase 4: Inform
May 2025

• Share Board-approved 
locally preferred 
alternative 

• Details for proposed 
station locations and 
route to move into 
environmental review 
and design



Swift Gold Line 
Outreach Schedule

Q3 2024

Phase 1 
Engagement

Council 
Updates

Q4 2024

Phase 2 
Engagement

Q1 2025

Phase 3 
Engagement

Q2 2025

Locally 
Preferred Alt 

Approval

Phase 4 
Engagement



Thank You!



Everett 2044 
Periodic Update

July 31, 2024



Periodic Update Status



Periodic Update Status - Three Primary Tracks

 Land use and zoning maps
 Goals, policies, actions (plan document)
 Middle housing regulations



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Review of alternatives ongoing
• Environmental Impact Statement later this year
• Staff working on centers concept



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Looking at Alt 3 (Dispersed) 
as starting point for 
preferred alternative



Land Use and Zoning Maps

• Looking at Alt 3 (Dispersed)
as starting point, then:

• Use higher heights from Alt 2 in Metro Core
• Consider higher heights from Alt 2 in centers
• Add Reservoir #5 to Mid-Rise (water utility 

request)
• Add N side Glenwood to Kenwood Dr to 

Low-Rise (staff request)
• Remove Valley View from middle housing 

(staff request)



Goals, Policies, Actions, Plan Document



The end toward which effort is directed.
Desired outcomes / intended achievements

A definite course or method of action selected from 
among alternatives and in light of given conditions to 
guide and determine present and future decisions.
A high-level overall plan embracing the general goals 
and acceptable procedures especially of a 
governmental body.
Guidance for actions / framework for future decision 
making / authorization for implementing regulations

The accomplishment of a thing usually over a period 
of time, in stages, or with the possibility of repetition.
Clear and discrete city work program items

Definitions from Merriam-Webster

Policy

Goal

Action



Elements (Planning Commission Meetings)

Climate Change & 
Resiliency (June-July)
Housing (July-Aug)
Urban Form (Aug)
Design & Development (Aug-
Sept)
Economic Development (Sept)
Marine Port (Sept)

Transportation (Oct)
Healthy Community (Oct)
Parks, Recreation, Open Space (Oct)
Public Facilities & Services (Nov)
Engagement, Administration & 
Implementation (Nov)
Bringing it all together (Dec-Jan)



Climate Change & Resiliency Element

Key Inputs
• State Law and Agency Rules (see Dept. of Commerce)
• Regional policies (VISION 2050 and Countywide Planning Policies)
• City of Everett Climate Action Plan (2020)
• Everett Hazard Mitigation Plan (2024)
• Mayoral directive 2023-04

Drafts available
• Goal alignment sheet
• Goals, policies, actions

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/climate-change-2/
https://www.psrc.org/planning-2050/vision-2050
https://snohomishcountywa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/91986/Council-Adopted-CPPs_Clean_Version_updated-Grw-Targts_02282022
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/23797/Everett-Climate-Action-Plan-January-2020
https://www.everettwa.gov/3099/Hazard-Mitigation-Plan
https://www.everettwa.gov/2992/Climate-Action-and-Sustainability
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/38540/2024-06-18-Planning-Commission-Memo-Climate-Change-and-Resiliency-Element
https://www.everettwa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/38933


PROPOSED CLIMATE CHANGE & RESILIENCY GOALS

Goal CC-1: Everett community greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions decrease 50% from 
2014 to 2030 and 80% from 2014 to 2050.

Goal CC-2: Municipal greenhouse gas emissions decrease 50% from 2014 to 2030 
and to net zero by 2050.

Goal CC-3: Increase renewable energy production and use.

Goal CC-4: Everett is prepared for and resilient to impacts, hazards and 
emergencies related to climate change.

Goal CC-5: Actions taken to reduce greenhouse gas emissions produce co-benefits 
including improved local air quality, fewer traffic collisions, and 
overburdened communities benefit most.



Housing Element

Key Inputs
• State Law and Agency Rules (see Dept. of Commerce)
• Regional policies (VISION 2050 and Countywide Planning Policies)
• Puget Sound Reginal Council Regional Housing Strategy
• Snohomish County HART Report and Action Plan
• Everett Rethink Housing Action Plan
• Mayoral Directive 2023-03: Housing choices for all

Drafts available
• Goal alignment sheet
• Goals, policies, actions

https://www.commerce.wa.gov/serving-communities/growth-management/growth-management-topics/planning-for-housing/updating-gma-housing-elements/
https://www.psrc.org/planning-2050/vision-2050
https://snohomishcountywa.gov/DocumentCenter/View/91986/Council-Adopted-CPPs_Clean_Version_updated-Grw-Targts_02282022
https://www.psrc.org/our-work/regional-housing-strategy
https://www.snohomishcountywa.gov/5560/Report
https://www.everettwa.gov/1395/2035-Comprehensive-Plan
https://www.everettwa.gov/1789/Mayoral-Directives


PROPOSED HOUSING ELEMENT GOALS

Goal HO-1: Encourage development of 38,558 diverse housing units to meet the 
needs of Everett’s growing community while ensuring the city's housing 
stock remains in excellent condition, with most existing homes 
preserved and well-maintained over the next 20 years.

Goal HO-2: Housing is available to rent at prices affordable to the economic 
segments of Everett's population, including 2,900 emergency shelter 
beds, 3,700 permanent supportive housing apartments, and 19,700 
housing units affordable to very low-income households.

Goal HO-3: Ensure equitable access to opportunity and housing choice throughout 
the city’s neighborhoods so that all residents may choose their 
neighborhood.



Rolling Reviews

EVERETTWA.GOV/2044

https://www.everettwa.gov/2812/Everett-2044


Middle Housing

Policy Framework
Regulatory Topics

Future Land Use Designation & 
Zones
Maximum Building Height
Maximum Lot Coverage
Open Space
Setbacks
Parking
Streetscapes and frontage types
Objective design standards

Overarching Considerations
Infrastructure and public services
Affordability
Racially disparate impacts and 
displacement
Historic resources
Critical areas and stormwater

May 21 and June 4 Planning Commission Workshops



Next Steps

• Planning Commission continued work
• Seeking input on element rolling reviews
• City Council briefings
• Boards and commissions
• Outreach push in fall-winter



EVERETTWA.GOV/2044

https://www.everettwa.gov/2812/Everett-2044

	07312024Plus
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26
	18th Street Pedestrian Improvements-Call for Bids-TH-CS
	18th Street Pedestrian Improvements-Call for Bids-TH-SD
	Assistance to Firefighters Grant EMW-2023-FG-02583_CS
	Assistance to Firefighters Grant EMW-2023-FG-02583_SD
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-CS
	CB 2407-14 Water Main Replace Y Phase 2-Plans & Systems-SN-SD
	Section 5.  The City Council hereby declares that should any section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance be declared invalid for any reason, it is the intent of the City Council that it would have passed all portions of this ordin...

	CB 2407-15 WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement-Ordinance-TH-CS
	CB 2407-15 WFP Air Scour Blower Building Replacement-Ordinance-TH-SD
	WET-Snohomish County-US 2 and I5 Interchange Planning Study-ILA-TH-CS
	WET-Snohomish County-US 2 and I5 Interchange Planning Study-ILA-TH-SD
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Everett 2044  Periodic Update
	Slide 2: Periodic Update Status
	Slide 3: Periodic Update Status - Three Primary Tracks
	Slide 4: Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Slide 5: Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Slide 6: Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Slide 7: Goals, Policies, Actions, Plan Document
	Slide 8: Policy
	Slide 9: Elements (Planning Commission Meetings)
	Slide 10: Climate Change & Resiliency Element
	Slide 11: Proposed Climate Change & Resiliency Goals
	Slide 12: Housing Element
	Slide 13: Proposed Housing Element Goals
	Slide 14: Rolling Reviews
	Slide 15: Middle Housing
	Slide 16: Next Steps
	Slide 17


	7.31.24 Written Comment
	Community Transit_Swift Gold Line_Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25
	Slide Number 26

	2044 Comp Plan Presentation
	Everett 2044 �Periodic Update
	Periodic Update Status
	Periodic Update Status - Three Primary Tracks
	Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Land Use and Zoning Maps
	Goals, Policies, Actions, Plan Document
	Policy
	Elements (Planning Commission Meetings)
	Climate Change & Resiliency Element
	Proposed Climate Change & Resiliency Goals
	Housing Element
	Proposed Housing Element Goals
	Rolling Reviews
	Middle Housing
	Next Steps
	Slide Number 17




